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COLLINS Brad

From: Wood Richard

Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 8:23 PM

To: S.47F() ;s.47F(1)

Cc: S.47F(1) ;S.22(1)(a)(ii) ;S.22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: RE: Inland Rail business case review - meeting in week of 1 Feb 2016

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi all

| won’t be able to attend in person but will seek to dial in. ¥4 ® or $:22@0) - could you let me know a suitable
number in due course?

Many thanks

Richard

From:S.47F(1) [mailto:S.47F(1) ]
Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 4:12 PM
To:S.47F(1)

Cc:S.47F(1) ; Wood Richard; $.22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: RE: Inland Rail business case review - meeting in week of 1 Feb 2016
No worries ¥4 ® |et’s leave it at 4pm

Regards

S.ATF(1)

S.47F(1)
Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

[cid:image001.png@01D15DF7.7E7B9A70]

P: S.ATF(L)
M: 8.47F(1)
E: s.47F(1)

Australian Rail Track Corporation
Suite 1, Level 8, 45 Clarence Street
Sydney NSW 2000

artc.com.au<http://www.artc.com.au/>
The information in this email and any attachments to it is confidential to the intended recipient and may be

privileged. Receipt by a person other than the intended recipient does not waive confidentiality or privilege. Unless
you are the intended recipient, you are not authorised to disseminate, copy, retain or rely on the whole or any part

of this communication. If you have received this communication in error please notify ARTC on +61 8 8217 4366.
While we have taken various steps to alert us to the presence of computer viruses we do not guarantee that this
communication is virus free.

From:S.47F(1) [mailto:s.47F(1) ]
Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 3:49 PM



Document 1

To:S.47F(1)
Cc:S.47F(1) ; Richard Wood; S.22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: Re: Inland Rail business case review - meeting in week of 1 Feb 2016

Hi SA4TF()

Thank you for your e-mail.

Would it be okay if we stick with 4pm on Thursday afternoon as it would give 1A's advisor to dial in if he can't make it
to IAin person?

Thanks,

S.A7F(1)

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 1:27 PM,S.47F(1) <S.47F(1) > wrote:

Hi S.47F(1)

Actually 1.30-2.30 might be better (at IA) if that suits.
Regards

s.47F(1)
Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

[cid:image001.png@01D15DF7.7E7B9A70]

P: 5.47F(1)
M: S.47F(1)
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
of this communication. If you have received this communication in error please notify ARTC on +61 8 8217
4366<tel:%2B61%208%208217%204366>. While we have taken various steps to alert us to the presence of
computer viruses we do not guarantee that this communication is virus free.

From:S.47F(1)

Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 1:26 PM

To: S.47F(1)"

Cc:S.47F(1) ; Richard Wood; $.22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: RE: Inland Rail business case review - meeting in week of 1 Feb 2016
His.47F(1)

That would be great thanks

Could we say 4 on Thursday?

Regards
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S.ATF(1)

S.47F(1)
Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

[cid:image001.png@01D15DF7.7E7B9A70]

P: SATF(L)
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

From:S.47F(1) [mailto S.47F(1) ]
Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 1:13 PM

To:S.47F(1)

Cc:S.47F(1) ; Richard Wood; S.22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: Re: Inland Rail business case review - meeting in week of 1 Feb 2016
His.47F(1)

At present, | could meet before 2.30pm or after 3.30pm on Thursday.

Shall | book a room at IA?

Thanks,

S.ATF(1)

From:S.47F(1)

Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 12:40

To:S.47F(1)

Cc:S.47F(1) ; Richard Wood

Subject: RE: Inland Rail business case review - meeting in week of 1 Feb 2016

Hi S4TF@)

| am waiting on getting final results from PwC but hopefully will get that to you this afternoon.
We are in Canberra Friday, would it be possible to schedule a time Thursday afternoon?

Best regards,



Document 1

S.ATF(1)

s.47F(1)

Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

[cid:image001.png@01D15DF7.7E7B9A70]

P: S.ATF(1)
M: S.47F(1)
E: 5.47F(1)

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
Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2016 11:49 AM

To:S.47F(1)

Cc:S.47F(1) ; Richard Wood

Subject: Inland Rail business case review - meeting in week of 1 Feb 2016

Hi S4TF()

Sorry, | missed your call last Friday. | understand from S.47F(1) message that a meeting is being planned for this
week, which is good.

If possible, | was wondering if we could aim for Friday this week due to the availability of our advisor. If it is not
possible, then let's stick with Thursday.

Look forward to seeing you.

Best regards,
S.47F(1)
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COLLINS Brad

From: Wood Richard

Sent: Tuesday, 23 February 2016 8:52 PM

To: s.22(1)(a)(ii)

Cc: S.47F(1) ;s.47F(1) s.47F(1) )

Subject: RE: 2.30pm Inland Rail meeting (dial in nrs below) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

| regret due to a conflict | won’t be able to dial in for this meeting but will discuss outcome seperatly with 54F® and
ARTC at a later stage.

regards

Richard

From: §.22(1)(a)(ii)

Sent: Tuesday, 23 February 2016 2:10 PM

To:S.47F(1);S.47F(1) ;S.47F(1) ; Wood Richard; S.47F(1) ;S.47TF(1);8.47F(1) ;

S.47F(1) :S.47F(1) ;S.4TF(1) :S.4TF(1) ; S4TF)
;SATE(L)  ;s.ATF(1)  ;s.47F(1)

Subject: 2.30pm Inland Rail meeting (dial in nrs below) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

When: Thursday, 25 February 2016 2:30 PM-3:30 PM (UTC+10:00) Canberra, Melbourne, Sydney.

Where: Infrastructure Australia - Level 21 - Deutsche Bank Place - 126 Phillip Street, Sydney

National Toll Free 1800 200 232
GUEST PIN: 2987217#

HOST PIN: 8833356# (IA Sydney only)
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COLLINS Brad

From: Wood Richard

Sent: Monday, 29 February 2016 10:10 PM

To: S.47F() ;s.47F(1)

Subject: RE: close-out discussion with IA [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

10.30 should be fine- can you arrange a dial in? | will be on my mobile

From:S.47F(1) [mailtoS.47F(1)

Sent: Monday, 29 February 2016 4:32 PM

To:S.47F(1) ; Wood Richard

Subject: RE: close-out discussion with IA [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi S4TF(1)

10.30 or 2.00 is fine by me.
| am aware that Richard is travelling tomorrow so | will fit in with any time that might suit him and you.

Cheers

S.ATF(1)

S.47F(1)
Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

[cid:image001.png@01D1733D.F0095DCO]

P: s.47F(1)
M: S.47F(1)
E: S.47F(1)

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
Sent: Monday, 29 February 2016 4:11 PM

To: Richard Wood; S.47F(1)

Subject: close-out discussion with IA [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Gents,
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s.47C(1)

. We have something at 11:30, but |
think that’s all. Is there a good time? 10:30? 2:00? Let me know.

Cheers,
S.47F(1)

s.47F(1)

Director — Project Advisory

PS.47F(1) | s.47F(1) 63

EsS.47F(1)

www.infrastructureaustralia.gov.au<http://www.infrastructureaustralia.gov.au/>

GPO Box 5417 | Sydney NSW 2001

[http://infrastructureaustralia.gov.au/images/AustGov_Infrastructure_Australia_inline.png]<http://www.infrastruct
ureaustralia.gov.au/>

Disclaimer

This message has been issued by the Department of Infrastructure and Regional Development.

The information transmitted is for the use of the intended recipient only and may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged material.

Any review, re-transmission, disclosure, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this
information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may result in severe penalties.
If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the Department on (02) 6274-7111 and delete all copies of this
transmission together with any attachments.
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WOOD Richard

From:

Sent: ril 2016 5:09 PM

To:

Cc: WOOD Richard; S47F(1)
Subject: RE: 7¢ Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3)

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Thanks- please also pass my thanks to PWC for the quick turn-around. We will come back to you with a final for
clearance next week, pending Board review.

From: SATE(1) = =

16 5:06 PM

Se
To:
Cc: ; WOOD Richard; s47F(1)

Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Regards

Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

ARTC

P:
M:
E:

Australian Rail Track Corporation
Suite 1, Level 8, 45 Clarence Street
Sydney NSW 2000

artc.com.au

The information in this email and any attachments to it is confidential to the intended recipient and may be privileged. Receipt by a person other than the
intended recipient does not waive confidentiality or privilege. Unless you are the intended recipient, you are not authorised to disseminate, copy, retain
or rely on the whole or any part of this communication. If you have received this communication in error please notify ARTC on +61 8 8217 4366. While
we have taken various steps to alert us to the presence of computer viruses we do not guarantee that this communication is virus free.

1
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Richard Wood

General Manager, Rail and Intermodal

Department of Infrastructure and Regional Development
GPO BOX 594 CANBERRA ACT 2601

& PhS-22(1)(@)(ii)| = Fax 02 6275 1388 | ® Mobiles:22(1)(@)(ii)| S-22(1)(a)(ii)

Disclaimer

This message has been issued by the Department of Infrastructure and Regional Development.

The information transmitted is for the use of the intended recipient only and may contain confidential and/or
legally privileged material.

Any review, re-transmission, disclosure, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon,
this information by persons

or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited and may result in severe penalties.

If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the Department on (02) 6274-7111

and delete all copies of this transmission together with any attachments.
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WOOD Richard

From: S.ATF(1) <s.47F(1) >

Sent: Tuesday, 3 May 2016 3:56 PM

To: sA47F(1) ;

Cc: s.22(1)(a)(i) ~ wOOD Richard; s47F(1)

Subject: RE: 7¢ Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3)
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: Infand Rail draft revised Project Evaluation Summary.docx

Hi S-47F(1)

Attached sources as requested.

s.4TF(1)

Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

ARTC

p- SATF(1)
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

From: S.47F(1)
Sent: Tuesday, 3 May 2016 10:09 AM

To: S.A7F(1)

Cc:S.2Z(1)(@)n) ; Richard Wood; S.47F(1)

Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

HiS-47F(1)

Please see revised summary attached. This is proposed to go to the Board this week. Grateful if you could provide us a
source for the amended data points I've marked, so we can answer questions. Or if no source, let us know how they’re
derived.

Thanks,
S.47F(1)

From:S.47F(1)
Sent: Friday, 29 April 2016 5:06 PM

10
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To:

£ S220)) oo s ST

Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Regards

Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

ARTC

P:
M
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

Sent: Thursday, 28 April 2016 4:32 PM
To:
Cc== Richard Wood;

s47F()
Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

i S4TFCD

11
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Reia rds,

Director — Project Advisory

www.infrastructureaustralia.gov.au
GPO Box 5417 | Sydney NSW 2001

From: WOOD Richard
Sent: Thursday, 28 April 2016 10:21 AM

: 7¢ Inlan
Importance: High

Comments as requested, incorporating both our and ARTC’s comments. ARTC also ran by PWC.

il Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Regards

Richard

Richard Wood
General Manager, Rail and Intermodal

Department of Infrastructure and Regional Development
GPO BOX 594 CANBERRA ACT 2601

12
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WOOD Richard _

From:

Sent: 8:42 AM

To: i

Cc:

Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3)
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: Iniand Rail revised Project Evaluation Summary tracked changes ARTC comment.docx

Hi s-47F(1)

Otherwise ok for publication.

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

Hi Richard and-

19
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Kind reiards,

Director - Project Advisory

P
E

www.infrastructureaustralia.gov.au
GPO Box 5417 | Sydney NSW 2001

S 2 Infrastructure Australin

From: WOOD Richard

Sent: Thursday, 28 April 2016 10:21 AM

To:

Cc:

Subject: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Importance: High

Comments as requested, incorporating both our and ARTC's comments. ARTC also ran by PWC.
Regards

Richard

Richard Wood

General Manager, Rail and Intermodal

Department of Infrastructure and Regional Development
GPO BOX 594 CANBERRA ACT 2601

5 P S220NE) = Fox 0262751288 = Mo S22(MENM, $:22(1)(@)i)

20
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WOOD Richard

From:
Sent: Thursday, 5 May, .
To: i :

Cc:
Subject:

Re: 7¢ Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3)
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Thanks Richard.

Anna

From: WOOD Richard

Sent: Thursday, 5 May 2016 11:38
To: ;

Cc:

Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

and to confirm, | have no issues either.

Richard

From: SATE(D) imaito'S ATE(1) ()
Sent: Thu 5 May 20 ;
T°‘h
Cc: WOOD Richard;

Subject: Re: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

HiSATF(1)

Thank you for your note.

Best regards,

From:S.47F(1)
Sent: Thursda :
TorSATF() SA4TF(1)

Cc: Richard Wood;
Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

HIEATE) S ATR(T)

With reference to -email of yesterday evening and subsequent discussions.

26
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Please don't hesitate to call if you need further clarification.

Best regards,

Shareholder and Government Relations
Inland Rail

ARTC

Australian Rail Track Corporation
Suite 1. Level 8. 45 Clarence Street
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

Sent: Wednesday, 4 May 2016 6:41 PM
To: Richard Wood;

Cc:

Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Richard and-

Kind reiardsi

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

To:s.47F(1)

cc:s.22(1)(a)(i) s.47F(1)

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

= PhS.22(1)(@)([i) = Fax 026275 1388 | = MobileS-22(1)(@)I), 5 22(1)(a)(ii)

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

Any review, re-transmission, disclosure, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon

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

Sent: Friday, 6 May 2016 3:54 PM

To: S.47F(1) ;S.47TF(1)

Subject: RE: IA assessment of Inland Rail - final evaluation summary for publication

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Noted. Could you advise when published.
Thanks

Richard

From:S.47F(1)

Sent: Friday, 6 May 2016 3:47 PM

To: WOOD Richard; S.47F(1)
Subject: IA assessment of Inland Rail - final evaluation summary for publication [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Richard and $47F(®)

As discussed with Richard, the IA Board positively assessed the Inland Rail business case this morning. Please find
attached the final version of the Inland Rail project evaluation summary which is proposed to be published on the
Infrastructure Australia website later today. Please note it has not changed since the version | forwarded on
Wednesday night.

Richard — grateful if you could confirm (as representative of the proponent) that you note that we propose to
publish the attached summaries.

Kind regards,
s.47F(1)

s.47F(1)

Director — Project Advisory

PS.47F(1)

ES.47F(1)

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
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i Infrastructure
e e SRR TRTER

Infrastructure Australia

Project Business Case Evaluation

Project name Inland Rail

Rating Priority Project

Date of 1A Board rating May 2016

National (encompassing Victoria, New South Wales and

Locatio
A Queensland)

Proponent Commonwealth

A 10-year construction timeframe between 2016 and 2025 is
proposed

Project timeframe

Evaluation Summary

Demand for freight transport in the Melbourne to Brisbane corridor is expected to grow substantially over the coming
decades. The proponent forecasts that the land freight task between these two cities will increase from approximately
4.9 million tonnes in 2016 to around 13 million tonnes, or approximately 1.1 million twenty-foot equivalent units (TEU),
by 2050. This increased demand will require additional freight capacity in the corridor.

The proponent proposes to provide increased capacity in the corridor by completing an inland rail connection between
Melbourne and Brisbane. The proposed rail solution would provide a service with a transit time within 24 hours, and a
high level of reliability, which are identified as industry requirements. Trains operating the service would have capacity
to carry 150 TEU from commencement of services, growing to 485 TEU when capacity for longer, double-stacked
trains is introduced over time.

The proponent’s stated benefit-cost ratio (BCR) is 1.1 using a 7% discount rate and P50 capital costs. When wider
economic benefits (WEBs) are included, the stated BCR rises marginally, but is still 1.1 when rounded. Key benefits of
the proposed project include improved productivity, improved network efficiency and reliability, safety improvements,
sustainability benefits, and reduced lifecycle costs. The P50 capital cost of the proposed solution is $9.9 billion in
nominal terms.

Infrastructure Australia’s evaluation of the project shows evidence of a long-term stream of benefits to potential users
of the project, users of alternative infrastructure, and the broader economy. However, Infrastructure Australia has also
identified a number of risks which could impact on the economic viability of the project. Factors such as a decrease in
demand for Australia’s coal exports, weak oil prices, reduced demand for interstate freight, and upgrades to the
Newell Highway, could adversely impact the economic case for Inland Rail.
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To address these risks, the proponent undertook further sensitivity testing on a number of key assumptions and
parameters in the business case. This sensitivity analysis indicates that the BCR remains above 1 in most scenarios.
However, under some scenarios the BCR drops below 1, and under a scenario in which all downside risks are applied
simultaneously, the BCR falls to 0.9 using a 7% discount rate and P50 capital costs, or 1.0 including WEBs.

Given the low likelihood of all downside risks occurring simultaneously, Infrastructure Australia is, on balance,
confident that the proposed solution would provide net positive benefits to the Australian economy.

Infrastructure Australia also considers that, from a strategic perspective, there is merit in using rail to move substantial
volumes of freight over long distances where it is economically viable to do so. This approach is consistent with
current strategic planning principles for freight transport.

Context and Problem Description

1. Strategic context

The combined population of Melbourne and Brisbane is projected to increase from around 7 million in 2016 to over 13

million in 2061. This growth in population is expected to generate a substantial increase in demand for interstate
freight.

The proponent forecasts that the land freight task between these two cities will increase from approximately 4.9 million
tonnes in 2016 to around 13 million tonnes, or approximately 1.1 million twenty-foot equivalent units (TEU), by 2050.
This rate of growth is consistent with the rate of growth in the national land freight task projected in the Australian
Infrastructure Audit — 80% growth over the 20 years 2011-2031.

Given the forecast growth in freight movements and the distances involved, there is strategic merit to a rail solution
that provides a viable alternative to road. This is particularly the case as roads along the east coast are expected to
become increasingly congested over time, resulting in negative safety, social and environmental impacts.

An initial study into Inland Rail was delivered by the Australian Rail Track Corporation (ARTC) in 2010. This found that
the project would be economically viable were it to commence operation between 2030 and 2035. Consequently the
2010 study recommended the project be re-examined between about 2015 and 2020, or when freight demand
increases to volumes that would make the project viable.

An alternative alignment for an inland rail connection between Melbourne and Brisbane has been proposed by
National Trunk Rail, a private sector proponent which provided a preliminary submission to Infrastructure Australia in
2014. Infrastructure Australia has not received a business case from this proponent.

2. Problem description

The projected increase in the Melbourne-Brisbane land freight task will require additional freight capacity in the
corridor.

The current rail connection between Melbourne and Brisbane, via Sydney, cannot offer the transit times and reliability
required by industry. This is largely a function of poor rail alignments and capacity constraints, particularly on the
section between Sydney and Brisbane, and delays on freight transiting the Sydney metropolitan area.

The current road connection between Melbourne and Brisbane via inland NSW offers faster transit times than rail via
Sydney, at lower overall costs. However, much of the road is two-lane single carriageway, with limited passing lanes.
Without additional capacity, transit times on this corridor will increase as freight volumes rise.
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Project description

3. Project overview
The proponent proposes construction of a new freight rail line between Melbourne and Brisbane via inland Victoria,
New South Wales and Queensland. The line would be approximately 1,700 kilometres in length. It would connect with
the Sydney-Perth rail line at Parkes in central NSW, providing a rail connection between Brisbane and Adelaide/Perth
some 500km shorter than the current rail connection via Sydney.

The line would maximise the use of existing rail infrastructure wherever possible, while providing transit times which
meet industry requirements. Around 40% of the proposed route would be constructed as new railway, or converted
from narrow gauge to dual gauge in Queensland (maintaining the existing narrow gauge connections between
Brisbane and regional centres). The remainder of the route would utilise and where necessary upgrade existing
standard gauge track in Victoria and NSW.

The line would utilise existing standard/dual gauge connections to the Port of Melbourne and Port of Brisbane. The
business case assesses these connections as having sufficient capacity for projected freight flows for at least the first
decade of operations.

The project provides for 1,800 metre single-stacked trains from commencement of operation, increasing to double
stacked trains within a few years and, ultimately, 3,600 metre double stacked trains as additional capacity is required
in the future.

The proponent states the project would allow a maximum train speed of 115 kilometres per hour for intermodal (non-
bulk) services, and 80 kilometres per hour for coal or other bulk commodities. This would provide a Melbourne to
Brisbane transit time under the 24 hour transit time for intermodal services required by industry. This would realise a
time saving of approximately 10 hours from the current average transit time on the coastal rail route via Sydney. The
proponent identifies a cost saving of $10 per tonne for non-bulk intermodal freight travelling between Melbourne and
Brisbane.

The business case provides for the development and operation of terminals, funded by terminal handling charges.
This will allow operators to develop terminal capacity appropriate to their operations.

Business Case and Economic Evaluation

4. Options identification and assessment
The proponent undertook a high-level options assessment to consider a range of reform and investment options.
These included:
¢ Reform options: A number of options were considered that could delay or avoid the need for capital investment
including:
0 Undertaking reforms to improve demand management through policy and pricing mechanisms;
o Productivity improvements through better labour and asset allocation in the freight transport sector; and
o Deregulation of elements of the freight transport sector, including relaxation of curfews and terminal access
restrictions, as well as vehicle productivity restrictions.
e Progressive road upgrades: Investment in the national highway network in the north-south corridor, including
duplication of the Newell Highway and improved alignments and gradients throughout the corridor.
e Upgrade of the existing coastal rail alignment via Sydney: Investment in additional tracks and/or passing loops to
provide additional capacity on the coastal route.
e Construction of a rail line connecting Melbourne and Brisbane inland from the east coast.

The proponent developed a scoring system to assess the options against a range of quantitative and qualitative
criteria. The proponent determined through this process that its preferred option was construction of a rail line
connecting Melbourne and Brisbane inland from the east coast.
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The preferred option was then assessed against a ‘do minimum’ baseline scenario which assumed continued
government spending for committed and funded investments, including major periodic maintenance requirements.
Both scenarios (the baseline case and construction of the preferred option) assumed there would be no change to
current policy settings over the life of the proposed project.

Infrastructure Australia notes that the options assessment undertaken by the proponent did not robustly consider the
value for money and deliverability of the full range of options. Infrastructure Australia would prefer if the proponent
could present a more complete, transparent and objective assessment of the options considered, with greater detail of
the relative costs and benefits of alternative options. A full cost-benefit analysis comparing the preferred option with
the principal alternative option — increased road capacity between Melbourne and Brisbane — would facilitate greater
scrutiny of the relative merits of the two alternative options.

5. Economic evaluation

The proponent undertook a full cost-benefit analysis of the preferred option. The business case was developed using
a 4% discount rate consistent with the proponent’s terms of reference, with a 7% discount rate used as a sensitivity
test. Infrastructure Australia guidelines require that a 7% discount rate be used, to better reflect the long-term
opportunity cost of capital. Using the 7% discount rate and P50 capital costs, the proponent's business case (as
amended in the proponent’'s March 2016 addendum) states that the proposed project has a BCR of 1.1.

The March 2016 Addendum also provides further analysis of the WEBs of the proposed project than was provided in
the 2015 business case. The WEBs in the updated cost-benefit analysis focus on the agglomeration benefits
generated by the preferred option. These include the benefits of industrial clustering around freight hubs, resulting in
reduced logistics costs, and ultimately driving increases in economic output. When WEBSs are included, the stated
BCR using the 7% discount rate and P50 capital costs rises marginally, but is still 1.1 when rounded.

The results of the proponent’s cost-benefit analysis are summarised in the table below.

7% discount rate 4% discount rate
and P50 capital costs | and P50 capital costs

BCR excluding WEBs 1.1 2.8

BCR including WEBs 1.1 2.9

Infrastructure Australia identified a number of risks to the economic viability of the preferred option. These relate to the
assumptions, demand and broader economic methodology applied in the cost-benefit analysis. The proponent
conducted a number of sensitivity tests of these risks:

o Length of the future benefits stream and treatment of residual values: The business case uses a future stream
of benefits approach to capturing benefits at the end of the appraisal period, consistent with relevant guidelines.
Straight line depreciation was used to test the effect of not receiving an ongoing stream of benefits after 50
years of operation. This test showed a reduction in the stated BCR.

e Assumed rate of mode switching (price elasticity): The business case projected how freight switches from road
to rail (price elasticity) through a stated preference survey methodology for interstate traffic between Melbourne
and Brisbane. The earlier 2010 study for Inland Rail used a lower rate of mode switching based on price. Use of
the lower rate showed a reduction in the stated BCR.

¢ Reliability characteristics for Inland Rail: The business case assumes an operational service reliability rate of
98%, with a sensitivity test at 95%. This test showed minimal impact on the stated BCR.

e Future oil prices: The assumed oil price of US$120 is in excess of current and recent forecast prices. A
sensitivity test was applied to examine the impact of oil prices at US$90 based on long-run forecasts, with a
corresponding decrease in exchange rate assumptions. This test showed minimal impact on the stated BCR.
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e Future of the coal market: Australian coal exports are an important driver of demand for Inland Rail. A sensitivity
test for the impact of changes in energy use and a decline in coal demand was applied, to test a scenario in
which no coal is transported 30 years after project completion. This test showed minimal impact on the stated
BCR.

e Duplication of the Newell Highway: The baseline scenario used by the proponent assumes no duplication of the
Newell Highway. As the principal competing freight route, it is possible that the Newell Highway could be
duplicated during the life of the proposed Inland Rail project, leading to reduced transit times for road freight
vehicles. A sensitivity test was applied to assess the impact of duplication of the Newell Highway, funded
through Depreciated Optimised Replacement Costs road pricing. This test showed minimal change to the stated
BCR as reduced road transit times were offset by higher road prices.

While the sensitivity tests completed by the proponent have provided some assurance that the project’'s BCR will
remain higher than 1 in most circumstances, scenarios more severe than those tested would likely resuit in a lower
BCR.

Under a scenario in which all sensitivity factors were applied at once, the BCR was 0.9 using the 7% discount rate and
P50 capital costs without WEBs, and 1.0 including WEBs. The sensitivity parameters that had the largest impact were
straight line depreciation and the price elasticity assumption. Overall, Infrastructure Australia considers the
assumptions, demand and broader economic methodology applied in the cost-benefit analysis to be robust. Given the
low likelihood of all downside risks occurring simultaneously, Infrastructure Australia has, on balance, a reasonable
level of confidence that the proposed solution would provide net positive benefits to the Australian economy.

However, given the potential impact of key risks to the economic viability of the project, Infrastructure Australia
considers that the proponent should undertake further assessment and management of these risks to ensure that the
project, if constructed, is able to deliver a BCR higher than 1.

Major cost items:

The major cost elements are:

e Capital costs associated with delivering Inland Rail infrastructure within the proposed 10-year construction

timeframe; and
e Operating costs which have been developed based on assumed demand, comprised of costs associated with

below rail operation and maintenance costs.

Total capital cost o  $9.89 billion (P50)
(nominal, undiscounted) e $10.66 billion (P90)
Proponent’s proposed Australian Government The proponent is currently undertaking an
funding contribution assessment of funding and financing options for the
(nominal, undiscounted) project
Other funding (source / amount / cash flow)
As above

(nominal, undiscounted)

Major sources of benefit

The major sources of benefit identified by the proponent include:

e Improved productivity and economic efficiency as a resuit of operating cost savings, shorter transit times,
improved reliability, improved availability, avoided incidents on the coastal route and an additional north-south
rail option to avoid incidents (80% of total benefits);
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e Sustainability benefits for the community from increasing rail's share of the long-distance freight task, reducing
vehicle emissions, congestion and noise (10.5% of total benefits);

e Reduced lifecycle costs for infrastructure owners and operators on the road network as a result of lower freight
volumes, with reduced maintenance costs and capital investments able to be deferred (7.5% of total benefits);
and

e Safety benefits for the community as a result of reducing the number of heavy vehicles on the road network (2%
of total benefits).

Deliverability

The proponent has provided sufficient technical information on the project design to demonstrate that there has been
adequate planning for project delivery at this stage of the process. The proponent is separately considering taxation,
financing, ownership and procurement aspects of the program, including possible funding options.

A range of risks have been identified in delivering Inland Rail:

e Changes in demand, leading to a reduction in freight flows in the Melbourne-Brisbane corridor.

e Increases in project cost beyond the estimates included in the business case. Given the marginal nature of the
BCR, an increase in project cost could have a significant impact on the final BCR.

e Lack of integration between operators and planning authorities in the development of appropriate terminal
capacity.

e Changes to stakeholder priorities impacting on construction staging.
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WOOD Richard

From:

s4rf(t) o
Sent: i i
To:
Cc: WOOD Richard;

:06 PM
Subject: RE: 7¢ Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3)
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Attachments: 7¢ Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check_20160429.docx

HiS-ATF(1)

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

WZB April 2016 4:32 PM
To:

Ce: :22(1)(@)([i) " Richard Wood;
Subject: RE: 7c Inland Rail Project Evaluation Summary ARTC Fact Check (3) [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

i SHTE0
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Regards,

Director — Project Advisory

ST
E

www.infrastructureaustralia.gov.au
GPO Box 5417 | Sydney NSW 2001

From: WOOD Richard
Sent: ThursdaiI 28 ﬁril 2016 10:21 AM
To

ceis 2(1)@)(i)
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
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